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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good morning.

          3    Oh, boy, is that loud.  It is nice to have friends

          4  in high places.  Thank you, Doug, and Happy

          5  Birthday.  Now it is on the record.

          6                 My name is Madeline Provenzano, and I

          7  Chair the Committee on Housing and Buildings.

          8                 Today this Committee is conducting

          9  its first hearing on Intro. No. 203.  This bill was

         10  drafted in response to a fire that occurred on June

         11  17, 2001 in Astoria, Queens on Father's Day. The

         12  fire took the lives of three firefighters.  The fire

         13  and an explosion occurred in the basement of a

         14  hardware store where flammables and combustibles

         15  were being stored and resulted in the deaths of

         16  Firefighters John Downing of Ladder 163, Brian Fahey

         17  of Rescue Company 4 and Harry Ford also of Rescue

         18  Company 4.

         19                 Although there were many factors that

         20  contributed to the fire, we do know that there was

         21  no sprinkler system in the basement, which would

         22  have helped to contain the fire.  Hence, this bill

         23  was introduced with the support of Fire officials to

         24  impose new sprinkler requirements and to require 2-

         25  hour fire- separation walls in new and existing
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          2  buildings to address below- grade areas in

          3  mercantile establishments where flammables,

          4  combustibles, varnishes and lacquers are stored.  It

          5  is hoped that these new mandates would help to

          6  reduce the spread of fires and save lives in the

          7  future.

          8                 Anyone that would like to testify on

          9  this bill should sign- in with the Sergeant- At-

         10  Arms.

         11                 And I would like to introduce my

         12  colleagues, some of them I know are also next door,

         13  so they will be jumping back and forth.  But we have

         14  Councilman Robert Jackson, Councilman Tony Avella,

         15  and my Council staff, Terzah Nasser, Sara Marks, and

         16  David Pechefsky.

         17                 Chief Salvatore Cassano, you are our

         18  first contestant.

         19                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Good morning,

         20  Chairperson Provenzano and Council members.  My name

         21  is Salvatore Cassano.  I am the Chief of Operations

         22  at the New York City Fire Department.  Thank you for

         23  allowing me this opportunity to testify before the

         24  Housing and Buildings Committee in regard to the

         25  proposed Local Law Intro. No. 203.
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          2                 The New York City Fire Department

          3  strongly supports amending the City's Administrative

          4  Code to require the installation of sprinklers in

          5  mercantile occupancies with below- grade storage of

          6  flammable and combustible mixtures.  The amendment

          7  will work to better protect property and saving

          8  lives, including those of New York City

          9  firefighters.

         10                 As you know, the Department has

         11  recently made a number of minor technical changes to

         12  the bill.  These changes are intended to make the

         13  language and the meaning of the law even clearer.

         14  These changes have been submitted to the Chair, and

         15  I understand that the Chair has no objection to our

         16  proceeding on the assumption that these technical

         17  changes to the bill will be deemed acceptable.

         18                 The sole substantive change we

         19  proposed is to move the compliance deadline up by

         20  one year, to April 30th, 2004.  As I will explain,

         21  the Department believes the legislation before us is

         22  extremely important from a fire safety perspective,

         23  important enough that the law's requirements should

         24  take effect within the next 22 months as opposed to

         25  34 months.  In our view, 22 months provides more
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          2  than ample time for the required installation of

          3  fire sprinklers.

          4                 Three weeks ago, residents across New

          5  York celebrated Father's Day.  While this annual

          6  holiday is an enjoyable occasion for many families,

          7  it has now become a solemn day of remembrance for

          8  the Fire Department.  This past Father's Day marked

          9  the one year anniversary of the tragic death of

         10  three heroic firefighters in a fire and back- draft

         11  explosion in the basement of the Long Island General

         12  Supply Company, a hardware supply store in Astoria,

         13  Queens.  Both the Fire Department and outside

         14  experts believe that these three men would be alive

         15  today if sprinklers had been installed in the

         16  basement of the store.

         17                 The tragic fire began after a

         18  juvenile accidentally knocked over a container

         19  outside the store, spilling gasoline under the rear

         20  basement door.  The gasoline formed a puddle in the

         21  basement near the hot- water heater, and the heater

         22  pilot flame eventually ignited the gasoline vapors.

         23  The fire spread throughout the basement, consuming

         24  cardboard boxes, gas cylinders, spray paint cans and

         25  flammable and combustible liquids, including
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          2  turpentine and lacquer thinners.  The heat from the

          3  fire eventually caused many of the containers of

          4  flammable and combustible materials, which were

          5  stored in the basement, to fail.  Large quantities

          6  of vapors were released, while the fire consumed the

          7  oxygen in the basement, thereby temporarily ceasing

          8  the flaming combustion, but also creating a highly

          9  flammable, oxygen- starved atmosphere.

         10                 The building's basement was locked up

         11  very tightly, and it took firefighters approximately

         12  28 minutes to force open the door and windows to the

         13  basement.  When firefighters were finally able to

         14  vent the rear door and cellar windows, oxygen re-

         15  entered the highly flammable atmosphere.  This

         16  sudden flow of air into the basement created an

         17  unusually severe back- draft explosion. Immediately,

         18  the sidewall collapsed, claiming the lives of

         19  Firefighters Harry Ford and John Downing.  The

         20  explosion threw Firefighter Brian Fahey into the

         21  basement, where he became trapped, and along with

         22  his two colleagues, perished from the fire.

         23                 It is very common for hardware

         24  establishments to store flammable and combustible

         25  materials for sale or use, as well as ordinary
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          2  materials that burn, such as paper, wood, and

          3  plastic materials.  However, the storage of

          4  flammable and combustible mixtures can substantially

          5  increase the risk and severity of a fire.  For this

          6  reason, the New York City Fire Prevention Code

          7  requires businesses that store flammable and

          8  combustible materials to obtain a permit from the

          9  Fire Department and comply with Fire Department

         10  storage requirements.

         11                 However, as we painfully learned on

         12  Father's Day 2001, serious problems can arise due to

         13  the location of flammable and combustible materials.

         14    To maximize space, businesses often use their

         15  basements for storage purposes.  Basements are

         16  generally less ventilated and less accessible to

         17  firefighters than ground level spaces.  Without easy

         18  access, it is more difficult to quickly extinguish a

         19  fire and prevent it from spreading to the flammable

         20  and combustible materials.

         21                 Because of these dangers, the Fire

         22  Department strongly supports the amendment being

         23  considered by the City Council.  It would require

         24  the installation of automatic fire sprinklers in

         25  each basement, cellar or other location below grade
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          2  in any mercantile establishment in which the Fire

          3  Commissioner permits the storage of flammable or

          4  combustible mixtures.

          5                 This is a logical step when

          6  considering the fire hazards inherent in the storage

          7  of ordinary combustible materials with flammable and

          8  combustible materials in below- grade locations.

          9  Automatic fire sprinklers cannot prevent accidental

         10  fires from starting.  However, sprinklers have

         11  proven extremely effective in protecting against

         12  property damage, reducing fire- related injuries,

         13  and most importantly, in preventing fatal fires.

         14                 If this important amendment is

         15  passed, we expect it to be enforceable, and affect a

         16  relatively small number of businesses, and not place

         17  an undue burden on those businesses.  The Fire

         18  Department will continue to be primarily responsible

         19  for enforcing the amended law, along with the

         20  Department of Buildings, which also has

         21  responsibility for following up on any complaints

         22  that it may receive.  We currently conduct an annual

         23  inspection of businesses and, when appropriate,

         24  grant permits to store flammable or combustible

         25  mixtures below- grade.  Under the new amendment, the
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          2  Fire Commissioner will not grant the annual permit

          3  without the installation of the required sprinkler

          4  system.

          5                 Our belief that a relatively small

          6  number of businesses will be affected is based on

          7  field inspections the Department conducted of a

          8  large sample of hardware stores that had been issued

          9  permits by the Department.  We assumed that below-

         10  grade storage would be highest in these occupancies.

         11    Our study showed that the new requirement will

         12  only affect approximately one- third of all such

         13  hardware stores; that is, only about one- third of

         14  such businesses stored flammable and combustible

         15  materials in unsprinkled basements.

         16                 To reduce the burden that installing

         17  sprinklers may place on these business owners, the

         18  Department of Buildings and the Fire Department have

         19  worked to ensure that two key provisions are

         20  included in the amendment.

         21                 First, businesses may choose to

         22  construct a fire separation wall, with at least a

         23  two- hour fire resistance rating, thereby

         24  segregating a room specifically for the storage of

         25  flammable and combustible mixtures and decreasing
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          2  the area in which automatic sprinklers are required.

          3                 Second, the amendment allows

          4  businesses to use their domestic water supply rather

          5  than a separate water supply delivery system for the

          6  sprinklers.  Of course, if a business remains unable

          7  to install the required sprinklers, they have the

          8  option to simply move the flammable or combustible

          9  materials from the below- grade area to the ground

         10  floor, or to stock a quantity of these materials

         11  that can be stored on the ground floor.

         12                 We believe these provisions minimize

         13  the burdens this amendment will create on New York

         14  City businesses, while greatly enhancing the safety

         15  of their buildings and the materials and the

         16  occupants in them.

         17                 In the case of the tragic Father's

         18  Day fire, sprinklers in the basement of the Long

         19  Island General Supply Company would have

         20  extinguished the fire earlier or contained the fire,

         21  eliminating the potential for it to spread.  If the

         22  basement had automatic sprinklers, the release of

         23  the flammable vapors would not have taken place

         24  because there would not have been a build- up of

         25  heat; the fire would have benign extinguished or at
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          2  least contained in a small area, instead of

          3  spreading to the containers of flammable and

          4  combustible materials and causing the release of

          5  hazardous vapors.

          6                 Sprinklers are truly 24- hour

          7  firefighters, always present and ready to extinguish

          8  a fire.  The Fire Department supports the

          9  installation of sprinklers in basements and other

         10  below- grade locations because they address the fire

         11  safety concerns raised by such storage, and they

         12  will help prevent another Father's Day tragedy.

         13                 Thank you again for the opportunity

         14  to testify in regard to this important local law.  I

         15  will not take any  questions that you may have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         17  Chief.  I would also like to introduce my colleague,

         18  Councilman Lew Fidler.

         19                 The Long Island General Supply

         20  Company where the fire was a year ago, had they

         21  complied with the current fire regulations that were

         22  in place at that time, did they have the proper

         23  permits?

         24                 CHIEF CASSANO:  At that time, yes,

         25  they did.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  They did,

          3  okay.  Maybe you can explain to me something I do

          4  not totally understand, domestic water supply?

          5                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Domestic water supply

          6  means it is tapped right off the drinking water that

          7  would supplying, you know, at your house or a

          8  residential building with water that they drink.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  As opposed

         10  to what, what would be?

         11                 CHIEF CASSANO:  A City main, actually

         12  hooking up and taking that supply from a City main

         13  in the street.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Oh, okay.

         15  Presently, how prevalent do you think sprinkler

         16  systems are in the kinds of establishments that we

         17  are looking at in this bill to require a sprinkler

         18  systems?

         19                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Very few.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Very few?

         21                 CHIEF CASSANO:  When we did our

         22  inspections, we found very few sprinklers in the

         23  basements.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I do not

         25  know if this is a question for you, or if we would

                                                            14

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  have to ask someone else.  But, do you have any idea

          3  what the cost of installing a sprinkler system? I

          4  guess there are two ways go, they would either have

          5  to retrofit or - -

          6                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Most of the

          7  establishments would have to be retrofitted because

          8  they have already been built.  The cost, I am not

          9  sure of the cost.  Julian, maybe.

         10                 MR. BAZEL:  Julian Bazel, Counsel to

         11  the Fire Department.  I do not think we have done

         12  any studies on the cost. It would depend a lot on

         13  the particular installation.  I think from our past

         14  experience, we found that installing a relatively

         15  small system would not be too expensive,

         16  particularly as we expect would be the case in many

         17  instances here, where you would be confining the

         18  source to a relatively small storage room using this

         19  two- hour fire separation.  And you would only need

         20  a very limited number of sprinkler heads to do it,

         21  perhaps two or three.

         22                 So that kind of installation should

         23  be fairly reasonable, and I would think that maybe

         24  the Buildings Department could address it.  As

         25  opposed to if you had a run a line out to the water
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          2  main industry, the separate fire sprinkler line

          3  bring into the building, do that all kind of

          4  plumbing that would be much more expensive.

          5                 Our expectation is the smaller

          6  hardware stores that store a modest amount of

          7  material would be able to, you know, confine it to a

          8  small space.  They could bring more up to the ground

          9  floor, or they could reduce their stock, and it

         10  should be much more manageable.  Larger buildings

         11  that store large amounts of it may be already

         12  sprinkler because they are in a different kind of

         13  occupancy classification, this would not really

         14  affect them.

         15                 So I think that given the way that we

         16  provided for these domestic water hookups and we

         17  have allowed them to limit the storage to a two-

         18  hour fire separation space, it should make the cost

         19  much more affordable.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Also, I

         21  would imagine that being located underground or in

         22  the basement that would be the source of the water

         23  supply anyway.  It is not as if they have to go up,

         24  you know, it is kind of right there.

         25                 How does the Fire Department, and I
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          2  guess the Buildings Department keep track of these

          3  kinds of establishments? You know, I am thinking,

          4  being, I guess, a cynical person that there has to

          5  be a lot of places out there that have stuff stored

          6  in the basement that the Fire Department and the

          7  Buildings Department do not know anything about.  So

          8  is there some kind of a system, do you guys go out

          9  and check, and then say, hey, you know, you do not

         10  have the permits?

         11                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Right.  Well, when we

         12  do our inspections of these buildings, we check the

         13  building for storage of flammables, combustibles.

         14  We check to see if we they have a permit.  But, yes,

         15  there are establishments that we may not be able to

         16  get during our inspections.  But we constantly do

         17  inspections to try to overcome that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Because we

         19  keep saying hardware store, but there have to be

         20  other kinds of establishments too, that do not come

         21  to my mind quickly, but that would also require or

         22  would, you know, come under the jurisdiction now of

         23  this legislation, I would think.

         24                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Yes, we are, when we

         25  go into an establishment, whether it is a hardware
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          2  store or, you know, a dry cleaner for instance.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

          4                 CHIEF CASSANO:  We constantly look

          5  for particular storage of chemicals, we go into the

          6  basement, and again, that is when we pick it up

          7  during our inspections.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

          9  Council Member Jackson.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good

         11  morning, Chief and other members of the Department.

         12  The two- hour separation wall that is referred to in

         13  the statement, can you describe to me as a

         14  layperson, what type of wall are we talking about,

         15  for example, are we talking about cinder blocks, or

         16  what type of walls would a business have to

         17  construct in order to give that two- hour

         18  separation?

         19                 CHIEF CASSANO:  I would leave it to

         20  the Building Department to explain in greater

         21  detail, and maybe with greater accuracy.  But my

         22  understanding is we are talking about something

         23  along the lines of two pieces of sheet rock, sort of

         24  double thickness.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Sheet rock?

                                                            18

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Sheet rock.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Maybe an

          4  inch thick each.

          5                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Right, double the

          6  normal thickness. I think normal sheet rock is

          7  approximately an hour fire rated.  And this would be

          8  doubled, and of course, it would also affect the

          9  ceiling in some of these old buildings.  There is no

         10  fire protection on the, you know, under the floor of

         11  the first floor, so obviously the space will be both

         12  walls and the ceiling, encasing it all in the sheet

         13  rock.  And of course, you would have to have a fire

         14  rated door.  So a door with some kind of

         15  installation.  So we are not talking about something

         16  unusually elaborate here.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.  So

         18  even, I mean cinder block, to the best of my

         19  knowledge as a layperson, would be even better than

         20  the sheet rock; is that correct?  So basically, from

         21  a practical point of view, is that, if I owned a

         22  small business and I had to comply with the new law

         23  to have a two- hour separation wall for flammable

         24  and combustible material, so you are talking about a

         25  pretty small area, if I ran a small business that
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          2  stores that; is that correct?

          3                 CHIEF CASSANO:  It would not be an

          4  overly costly or burdensome item for an owner to do,

          5  that is why it was built into the law.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And even if

          7  I had two- hour separation, would I still have to

          8  install in that small area, a sprinkler?

          9                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And as you

         11  indicated, it could be run from the normal water

         12  line, as far as normal domestic line, they would not

         13  have to install a separate line that comes straight

         14  from the street; is that correct?

         15                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And that is

         17  only for the flammable and combustible material; is

         18  that correct?

         19                 CHIEF CASSANO:  Right.  That

         20  particular room, that area where the combustible and

         21  flammable would be stored.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So it is my

         24  understanding that if you had a basement this size,

         25  and you then decided well, I am just going to cut
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          2  off this area for my storage, that is what you would

          3  enclose with this two- hour firewall.

          4                 CHIEF CASSANO:  That is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  All right.

          6  I would just like to add, and I wanted to comment

          7  before, that when the bill was submitted to us,

          8  well, our bill is 203, we did receive the amendments

          9  from the Fire Department as 203- A, so we had

         10  suggested that we have a hearing today on the

         11  original bill and also the amended bill so as not to

         12  confused everybody and get it all out there at once.

         13                 I would also like to introduce

         14  Councilwoman Gale Brewer.  Did you want to add

         15  something to your - -  Okay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I just

         17  wanted to follow- up with some more questions.  So

         18  if I am that small business, and if I did not want

         19  to build a separate room in the basement, then I

         20  would have to bring the materials up to the street

         21  level; is that correct?

         22                 CHIEF CASSANO:  That is correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And I will

         24  be able to store it at that level to the extent that

         25  I can; is that correct?
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          2                 CHIEF CASSANO:  According to the

          3  Code, yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Any other

          6  questions?  No. I thank you very much.

          7                 Next we have Ron Livian and David

          8  Nussbaum from the Department of Buildings.

          9  Gentlemen, welcome.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Thank

         11  you.  Good morning, Chairperson Provenzano and

         12  members of the Committee on Housing and Buildings.

         13  My name is Ronny Livian, and I am Deputy

         14  Commissioner for Technical Affairs in New York City

         15  Department of Buildings.  I am here to testify in

         16  support of Intro. 203 and its latest amendments as

         17  described by the Fire Department.

         18                 Department of Buildings concurs with

         19  the Fire Department that this legislation will help

         20  to create a safe environment for the storage of

         21  flammable and combustible mixtures in mercantile

         22  occupancies.  We also support the retroactive

         23  provisions of this legislation as it relates to

         24  important life safety concerns.

         25                 As the Fire Department has clearly
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          2  described the need for this legislation in their

          3  testimony, I will focus on the Department of

          4  Buildings' role in this process.  All mercantile

          5  establishments that are permitted by the Fire

          6  Department to store flammable or combustible

          7  mixtures below grade will be required to install an

          8  automatic sprinkler system.  This legislation,

          9  however, also provides for a cost- saving

         10  alternative that would allow the establishment to

         11  construct a fire- resistant enclosure with a permit

         12  from the Department of Buildings, and sprinklers,

         13  which would only be required within that enclosed

         14  space.  If the enclosure requires less that ten

         15  sprinkler heads, that system can be connected to the

         16  domestic water supply.  This would save the costs

         17  associated with installing a separate water line for

         18  sprinklers.  Further, the sprinkler work can be

         19  performed by a licensed master plumber.  For systems

         20  that contain greater than ten sprinkler heads, a

         21  licensed Fire Suppression Installer would be

         22  required to perform the work. Also, as the Fire

         23  Department has noted, the owner or commercial tenant

         24  may choose to store these materials in an approved

         25  above grade location, thus eliminating the need for
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          2  below- grade sprinklers.

          3                 For enforcement purposes, the Fire

          4  Department, which performs annual inspections of

          5  locations that possess permits for storage of these

          6  types of materials, can refer to the Department of

          7  Buildings those locations that have not met the

          8  requirements of this legislation.  The Department of

          9  Buildings has the power to issue violations for

         10  absent or non- compliant sprinkler systems. The

         11  Department of Buildings would also respond to a

         12  complaint from the public.  For new buildings, the

         13  Department will also check for the inclusion of

         14  sprinklers for below- grade storage spaces during

         15  the plan examination review process.

         16                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         17  speak to you today. I would be happy to answer any

         18  questions you may have.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         20  I think you have actually cleared up some of the

         21  questions I had, but, do you have any idea what the

         22  cost would be to install a sprinkler system, either

         23  as retrofitting or at the time of construction, is

         24  one less expensive than the other?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  No, the
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          2  price is usually associated per sprinkler heads, but

          3  we do not, we have not performed this study of the

          4  cost per sprinkler heads in retrofitting of existing

          5  buildings.  However, I can comment on the fact the

          6  cost would be a lot more if they had to run a

          7  separate supply line from the street, which would

          8  involve cutting the sidewalk and connecting to the

          9  street main.  That would actually make the cost more

         10  than 5 to 6 times what the sprinkler work would be.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So by

         12  allowing them to use the domestic water line it is

         13  very, the less cost- effective.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  The cost

         15  would be very reasonable.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         17  Council Member Fidler.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Yes, I am

         19  curious how the Buildings Department is going to

         20  check on new construction, for the inclusion of

         21  sprinklers in below- grade storage spaces.  How do

         22  you know at the time a new building is being

         23  planned, designed, erected, whether or not its

         24  eventual occupant or tenant is going to be storing

         25  combustible materials?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  There

          3  are two stages. The plans actually identify the

          4  intended use of the basement or cellar, which is

          5  below- grade.  And if the plans indicate any kind of

          6  storage, we would question that and we would require

          7  sprinklers at the time of application.

          8                 It is also possible that after

          9  construction a new tenant has come in, which has a

         10  different requirement and places storage in the

         11  basement, that would be indicated at the time of

         12  inspection before Certificate of Occupancy is issued

         13  that the inspector will notice that there is storage

         14  of flammable or combustibles in the cellar.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  But, you

         16  know, still I mean numbers of taxpayer, you know,

         17  commercial taxpayer units are built without any

         18  notion of who the tenants are going to be.

         19  Construction is completed and they still may not

         20  have a tenant.  A C of O would then likely be issued

         21  without a tenant.  I assume what I am saying is

         22  accurate, yes, I mean that is a significant

         23  possibility, and in fact, in many cases a

         24  probability.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:
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          2  Absolutely.  The possibilities after a couple of

          3  years of construction, a new tenant may require

          4  storage in the cellar and basement.  And that is, as

          5  the Fire Department indicated, that will be picked

          6  up by the Fire Department's annual inspection.  But

          7  there is also a possibility that these will be

          8  indicated to either the Department of Buildings or

          9  the Fire Department by a complaint from anyone who

         10  notices this.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So unless an

         12  applicant on new construction specifically tells you

         13  I am putting in a dry cleaner and there is going to

         14  be basement storage.  I am putting in a hardware

         15  store and there is going to be basement storage, or

         16  I am putting in a paint store and there is going to

         17  be basement storage, you would not, this particular

         18  provision of the law and procedure would not really

         19  be all that effective.  I mean, it has got to be

         20  caught by the Fire Department during a random or

         21  annual inspection.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  That is

         23  correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         25  We have been joined by Council Member Kendall
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          2  Stewart.  Council Member Anthony Avella.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Good morning,

          4  Commissioner. A quick question, in terms of the

          5  sprinkler heads, you say that the enclosure that

          6  requires less than 10 can be connected to the

          7  domestic water supply, and above that would have to

          8  connected to the main.  What are we talking about in

          9  terms of size?  I mean, what is the size between the

         10  sprinkler head, what are we talking about in terms

         11  of, like, I guess, square footage?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  In

         13  general, for ordinary occupancy the sprinklers are

         14  installed 12 feet on center, and they cover 120

         15  square feet.  For 10 heads it would be approximately

         16  1,200 square feet area.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I am also

         18  concerned as my colleague, Council Member Fidler

         19  brought up, about the inspection process and how do

         20  we know when somebody had changed their usage and is

         21  now storing flammable, combustible materials?  What

         22  is, is there any procedure within the Department of

         23  Buildings existing now to do that type of

         24  inspection?  I mean, I know the Fire Department has

         25  general jurisdiction in this, but I was wondering
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          2  from your perspective.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  The

          4  Department of Buildings does not have anyone on

          5  group that does general inspection, but we perform

          6  that inspection if there is a complaint or we are

          7  notified.  We get the complaint either from the

          8  public and also from the Fire Department, if they

          9  notice stuff.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Just

         12  following that line of questioning, let's assume

         13  that someone is doing construction and the first

         14  floor area is a real estate company.  So, everything

         15  is completed and for a year or two it is real

         16  estate, and then somebody comes in and decides to

         17  open a dry cleaning establishment. What happens at

         18  that point, do they have to notify the Department of

         19  Buildings for that change, can they just come in and

         20  do that, you know what is the scenario?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  On

         22  establishments like dry cleaning and laundry and

         23  equivalent that they require permits for machinery

         24  and those, the Department will be notified that

         25  there is a change of occupancy.  But there are other
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          2  occupancies that they do not need a specific permit

          3  from the Department.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Like a

          5  hardware store?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Like a

          7  hardware store.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So that

          9  would either have be noticed by  someone in the

         10  community, or the Fire Department when they are

         11  doing their regular inspections.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  That is

         13  correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, thank

         15  you.  Council Member Jackson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you,

         17  Madam Chair. Good morning, Deputy Commissioner.

         18                 With respects to the Fire

         19  Department's annual inspections, and I know that you

         20  are not here representing the Fire Department, but I

         21  am trying to understand, do they have a computerized

         22  list that they go around or do you know the process

         23  that they use in their annual inspection?  For

         24  example, if I own a business and I have a permit to

         25  store flammable, combustible material, is that
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          2  permit good forever, or is it good for five years,

          3  or two years, or every year, what is the limitation

          4  of that?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  I am not

          6  very certain, I know that they perform an annual

          7  inspection on all of the storages that they have

          8  permits for.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And who

         10  issues those permits, the Fire Department?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  The Fire

         12  Department.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I see, so I

         14  would have to ask them that question.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  That is

         16  correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We still

         18  have some folks here from the Fire Department,

         19  would someone like to respond to that question?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I can come

         21  back to it, Madam Chair, would that be okay?  Or if

         22  they can respond to it now, that would be great.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Sure.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  If you do

         25  not mind?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Sure, as

          3  long as we have them here, let's get it done.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, thank

          5  you.

          6                 MR. BAZEL:  Julian Bazel, Counsel for

          7  the Fire Department, again.

          8                 The Fire Department tracks all of its

          9  permits that come to it from any number of sources.

         10  And they conduct regular inspection.  I believe, and

         11  I would have to double check with the Bureau of Fire

         12  Prevention, I believe it was done on an annual

         13  basis.  So they would go back and reinspect and make

         14  sure the store is in compliance with the Code.

         15  There are often changes in occupancies that happen

         16  in the interim, but by the time we get back, and

         17  therefore, there may be a new occupant, they may not

         18  be aware of the requirements at that point.  They

         19  are given the appropriate instructions and orders or

         20  violations.

         21                 The Fire Department, also through its

         22  uniformed field inspections, periodically does

         23  familiarization in various buildings.  And they are

         24  in the area, they may observe changes in occupancy,

         25  if they see a new hardware store or another dry
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          2  cleaner or something opened that there may be

          3  referrals to the Bureau of Fire Prevention so that

          4  they pick in the new occupancies that require

          5  permits.  There are any number of ways, complaints,

          6  any number of ways that these matters come to the

          7  attention of the Bureau of Fire Prevention.

          8                 The inspectors, the Bureau, the Fire

          9  Department inspectors that are in the course of

         10  doing there regular inspections are walking down the

         11  street.  They may observe new occupants in

         12  buildings.  So, there are just any number of ways

         13  that we pick up on new occupants.  But obviously,

         14  there are situations where we may not become aware

         15  of one, unless someone complains about it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How long is

         17  the permits, what is the time frame, I mean, the

         18  permit is once I file a permit that is it, or do I

         19  have to renew it every year, two years, five years,

         20  what?

         21                 MR. BAZEL:  No, Fire Department

         22  permits are, I believe, under the Code, no more than

         23  three years.  So, I believe they are one, two, or

         24  three years, I am not exactly sure.  For flammables

         25  and combustibles, I am under the impression it is
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          2  one year, but I would have to confirm that with our

          3  Bureau of Fire Prevention.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  In

          5  relationship, I know we were talking about the

          6  Father's Day fire in Long Island City at the

          7  hardware store.  But what comes to my recent memory

          8  was the explosion in the Greenwich Village area of,

          9  I think, it was a sign place in a basement, which

         10  injured or may have killed a couple of people.  Was

         11  that a similar type situation?

         12                 MR. BAZEL:  I am really not familiar

         13  with all the particulars of that.  I really cannot

         14  answer the exact situation there.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That was in

         16  the basement and there was this huge explosion where

         17  people initially thought it was a terrorist attack.

         18                 MR. BAZEL:  Certainly, obviously, my

         19  understanding, again just from reading the press

         20  reports and general information, was that there were

         21  flammables and other kinds of materials being

         22  handled inappropriately, and the fact that it was

         23  below- grade certainly may have enhanced the

         24  problem, but I really am not familiar with the

         25  particulars of that matter.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Is there a

          3  list, for example, go back to the whole situation

          4  where I said that if I was that small shop owner, I

          5  would, there is that is put out by the Fire

          6  Department of flammable, combustible materials that

          7  I have access to, or does all flammable and

          8  combustible materials state that on the container?

          9                 MR. BAZEL:  I am sure there is a

         10  variety of public information available from the

         11  Fire Department, and I am sure that industry groups,

         12  you know we have a lot of, we have an Industry

         13  Advisory Board who are in regular contact with

         14  industry groups. Anyone who is installing the

         15  equipment necessary for the operation of the

         16  business, basically, I think it is primarily from

         17  the installers and the industry groups that people

         18  who are going into a new business with which they

         19  are not familiar with the requirements, learn of the

         20  various permit requirements and so forth.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         22  Deputy Commissioner, what would it cost me as a

         23  small business owner in order to get the appropriate

         24  permits in order to construct the fire location,

         25  below- grade, I am talking about if you could give a
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          2  general range?  Obviously, in order to install that

          3  room and with sprinklers by a licensed plumber, what

          4  is the approximate cost factor?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Again,

          6  we have not performed the cost study, and there may

          7  be other groups that have performed cost studies on

          8  this.  We can tell you that the Department of

          9  Building fees would be the minimum filing fee

         10  because it is part of cost of alterations, which

         11  would be in the hundred to two hundred dollar range.

         12    But in addition to that, that would be the cost of

         13  the architecture, and of course, construction.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  When you

         15  talk about the mercantile occupancies, you are

         16  talking about regular businesses, is that what you

         17  are referring to?  Because I am not in the field, I

         18  mean, mercantile, it means materials.  Am I correct,

         19  I am a layperson?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  It is

         21  general commercial businesses.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  General

         23  commercial business, okay.

         24                 And on page 2 of your testimony it

         25  says, "also as the Fire Department has noted, the
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          2  owner or commercial tenant may choose to store these

          3  materials in an improved above- grade location."

          4  What is an improved above- grade location?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Again,

          6  as the Fire Department described there are specific

          7  locations, and some of the material may require

          8  enclosures even above- grade, depending on their

          9  flammability and if they are combustible.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Madam Chair,

         11  I did not really hear that in the testimony of the

         12  Fire Department.  Did I miss something?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Can I ask

         14  the Fire Department to come back?  Julian, I guess

         15  it is you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But I am

         17  referring to his statement.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, but

         19  still I think --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  If he is

         21  giving a statement I would assume that he would - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I know that

         23  some of the other Council members have some

         24  questions for the Fire Department too.  I guess I

         25  let you go too quickly.
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          2                 MR. BAZEL:  Again, some of these

          3  technical requirements may be beyond my expertise,

          4  but generally speaking, there are specific

          5  provisions relating to various kinds of flammable

          6  and combustible materials that specify what kind of

          7  storage, locations, amounts, things of that sort.

          8  So, obviously, in a typical commercial business, you

          9  cannot store hundreds of gallons of a particular

         10  kind of highly flammable kind of material that is

         11  just deemed to be too unsafe for that kind of

         12  occupancy. So there is usually a limit on the amount

         13  depending on the kind of material that may be

         14  required that it be kept in a metal cabinet, it may

         15  be required that there be appropriate ventilation in

         16  the building so that the fumes can be vented.  It

         17  depends on the activity, how they are using the

         18  material.  In most of the cases, I think we are

         19  talking about here, really we are talking about

         20  stores that are simply selling it, not using it.

         21  But, you know, again, there could be like in the dry

         22  cleaning business, they may be using the chemicals

         23  for dry cleaning.  So there are specific

         24  requirements, again, in connection with the storage

         25  as well as the operation of the equipment.
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          2                 Does that answer your question?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  It does,

          4  thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          6  Do not move, Julian.  Council Member Brewer.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.  I

          8  am always being curious about inspections and the

          9  use of technology.  And the question I have is that

         10  I understand there is a Fire Department permit list,

         11  which I assume is some kind of database for the perc

         12  or the machines, or whatever it is that people have

         13  to file for. Is that shared with the Department of

         14  Buildings on a regular basis?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  The

         16  individual Fire Department permits are not shared

         17  unless there is a problem, and then they would refer

         18  a question or a problem to the Department of

         19  Buildings.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But would not

         21  it be a good idea to have some sharing of databases

         22  on things like this so that you are duplicating,

         23  that when you go into an establishment you know what

         24  is there?  Is this a database problem or just never

         25  been a coordination of an inspection issue?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:

          3  Actually, it is part of our technology and the

          4  future to be able to have to place all of these

          5  permits and information on a database and be able to

          6  share database both with Fire Department and some

          7  other agencies that we deal with.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I am very

          9  familiar.  I sort of knew the answer before I asked

         10  it, but I was curious for the answer.  Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 And then the other question is, in

         13  terms of getting the information out, many of us

         14  have served on Community Boards for a long time, we

         15  have District Service Cabinets, members of your

         16  agency attend.  I always find the meetings not has

         17  helpful as they could be.  Is this the kind of

         18  information that you could, or the kind of law that

         19  you could enlisted the use of the Community Board to

         20  say these are the establishment?  Sometimes we wait

         21  until there is an emergency as opposed to some

         22  discussion about what is going on in the

         23  neighborhood, new dry cleaning, hardware, et cetera.

         24    Has that been thought about?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Sure,
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          2  actually a major part of our information from the

          3  establishment comes from the Community Boards and

          4  there information.  Either through the Community

          5  Board at the Cabinet meetings or individually as the

          6  Community Boards notify us of a new establishment

          7  that started operating, and they question their

          8  operation and their permits.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I am just

         10  saying more of a proactive stand, perhaps, on

         11  something like this.

         12                 MR. BAZEL:  Yes, well, the Fire

         13  Department through its Bureau of Intergovernmental

         14  Affairs does meet regularly with Community Boards.

         15  Many times it is about, you know, fire fighting

         16  issues and so forth.  But, I know that, for example,

         17  when there were the Fire Safety Plan, the notices

         18  went out.  I believe there was an effort to educate

         19  Community Boards as well as other civic groups, and

         20  there was presentations made.  So, I certainly think

         21  that, you know, we could avail ourselves of that

         22  mechanism to get the word out.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And of course

         24  we have the database information that could be

         25  shared.  And then finally, are there, did this law
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          2  similarly exist in any other city in the United

          3  States?

          4                 MR. BAZEL:  I am not 100 percent sure

          5  other cities do.  And New York City has a lot of

          6  older construction, and you know, newer construction

          7  may be in many cases may already be designed in

          8  especially other cities with sprinklers and so

          9  forth. This may be a problem that is sort of unique

         10  to an older city like New York City.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  There are a

         12  few other cities, you know, Boston, Pittsburgh, you

         13  know, just a few, Providence, so just a few.  So,

         14  you do not know.

         15                 MR. BAZEL:  Actually, my recollection

         16  when we were last here talking about the Fire

         17  Sprinkler Bill was that some cities that actually

         18  require retrofitting existing buildings.  So, this

         19  is, obviously, a more narrowly targeted bill.

         20                 But clearly, I think there is a

         21  general recognition of the need to address the issue

         22  of below- grade storage of flammables and

         23  combustibles, and in some places I believe it is

         24  prohibited entirely.  So there is a lot of, you

         25  know, different approaches, but the bottom line is
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          2  it is clearly an issue that has been recognized as a

          3  matter of concern when you are dealing with any

          4  significant amount of material.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you,

          6  Madam Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          8  Member Avella.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Actually, I

         10  also wanted to follow- up on what my colleague,

         11  Council Member Brewer mentioned. In terms of

         12  flammable and combustible materials, would they also

         13  be considered hazardous materials?  I mean, we are

         14  talking in terms of definition of terms.  Because I

         15  know the Department of Environmental Protection has

         16  jurisdiction over some hazardous materials and keeps

         17  its own database.  So how does that relate to what

         18  we are talking about right now?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  The

         20  hazardous materials are different, they are

         21  classified differently in Building Code. The

         22  hazardous materials are classified as an occupancy,

         23  and they have different requirements for the

         24  enclosure and for venting and sprinklers, that is

         25  already in the Building Code and identifies them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  In terms of

          3  my question about the database, is that something

          4  that DEP is also going to be involved in sharing

          5  this information?  Because, obviously, you all have

          6  overlapping jurisdiction at some point in terms of

          7  these materials.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  That is

          9  correct.  Once we create a database that can be

         10  shared, we can be sharing.  But at this time, again,

         11  with DEP, sharing is based on a specific issue or a

         12  complaint.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Because I

         14  think what you are hearing from us is that is

         15  insufficient.  Because I can tell you I had a

         16  warehouse in my district, in College Point, which

         17  basically receives materials and then mixes them and

         18  then distributes them, I guess to the hardware

         19  stores.  And lo and behold, I got complaints from

         20  residents, and then I asked the agencies to go out,

         21  and lo and behold, he had not had proper permits for

         22  the hazardous of flammable materials that he had on

         23  premises.

         24                 So I think what we are saying is that

         25  there needs to be some procedure that it does not
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          2  wait for that complaint, because if that complaint

          3  does not come through, we risk a serious accident.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIVIAN:  Yes, we

          5  certainly do recognize the need for that procedure,

          6  and the sooner we can start the better it is.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Well that is

          8  part of our job in reconstructing the Department of

          9  Buildings.  And I think, we know the Department of

         10  Buildings really is complaint driven as far as their

         11  inspections.  But I know the Fire Department is out

         12  there just stopping in whenever they want to.  So,

         13  that turns out to be a good thing.

         14                 And also, I thought your suggestion

         15  on the Community Boards is very good.  I know if all

         16  of the Community Boards were like my two Community

         17  Boards, that would work out very well.

         18                 Council Member Stewart.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

         20  Madam Chair.  In terms of permits that you spoke

         21  about, if a permit expired, was not posted, who

         22  handles these types of summonses?

         23                 MR. BAZEL:  I am sorry, if they lack

         24  a permit or they do not post a permit?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  If it

                                                            45

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  expired or if it is not posted, who handles these

          3  summonses?

          4                 MR. BAZEL:  Well, there is a

          5  procedure whereby they renew it and there is an

          6  inspection.  Obviously, if they fail to renew it, we

          7  would go out and issue appropriate violations.

          8                 You know, the people who have

          9  permits, you know, there is a regular procedure for

         10  renewing it.  It is often cases where you have a

         11  situation where there is a change of occupancy, and

         12  that is the situation where people may not be aware

         13  that they need to get a permit.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  No, I am

         15  going further.  If there is a violation and you have

         16  to pay a fine, who handles, which one of the, it is

         17  the Civil Court, Criminal Court, ECB, which one of

         18  the agencies handle that?

         19                 MR. BAZEL:  Violations of the Fire

         20  Prevention Code are enforceable, typically, through

         21  one of the two mechanisms. Generally speaking, a

         22  permit would go to the New York City Environmental

         23  Control Board, which is the administrative

         24  judicatory forum, which allows, has regular

         25  procedures.  It does not require that you hire an
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          2  attorney.  It is much more informal, it is basically

          3  geared towards compliance.  And it gives you a

          4  period of time of compliance without having to

          5  appear at a hearing, and thereafter, there is a

          6  schedule of penalties at the Environmental Control

          7  Board.

          8                 Alternatively, for more serious

          9  violations or for certain kinds of violations they

         10  are prosecuted in Criminal Court, and that is a more

         11  formal procedure.   But that, the typical kind of

         12  permit we are talking about whether it is a failure

         13  to renew or a failure to obtain, generally speaking,

         14  that would go to the Environmental Control Board.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Any more

         17  questions?  I thank you all very much.

         18                 Stewart O'Brien and Melissa Barbour.

         19  Welcome.

         20                 MR. O'BRIEN:  My name is Stewart

         21  O'Brien.  I am Executive Director of the Plumbing

         22  Foundation in the City of New York, and my comments

         23  will be very brief.

         24                 It is clear that this bill is a well

         25  thought out bill, well crafted and does exactly what
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          2  it is intended to do, which is after this tragic

          3  event is to put in sprinklers so that this will not

          4  happen once again.  And it is well crafted, and we

          5  are fully supportive of it.  And we represent the

          6  Plumbing Industry, we represent also, many people

          7  who also are fire suppression contractors licenses

          8  as well.  It is a well thought out bill, it is

          9  crafted to make sure that it is not too burdensome

         10  to the small business owners.

         11                 But what strikes us is that this bill

         12  is crafted to deal with the situation after it has

         13  occurred.  And our observation is that rather than

         14  deal with trying to prevent the next tragedy by

         15  passing a bill once a tragedy has occurred, is to

         16  pass a bill dealing with sprinklers in many

         17  situations so we will not have to come here again

         18  and look at this situation and say, a few people

         19  died here, let's pass a bill to fix this situation.

         20  I think we should be looking at a bigger strategy

         21  dealing with an all encompassing strategy that deal

         22  with sprinklers in the City of New York, so people

         23  do not die in these kinds of events.

         24                 That is my comments.  Thank you.

         25                 MR. BARBOUR:  Hi, good morning.  I am
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          2  Melissa Barbour.  I am with the Mechanical

          3  Contractors Association of New York.  We represent

          4  fire suppression contractors.  We echo what Stu just

          5  said.

          6                 Also, I would like to say that our

          7  Association would be happy to put together some

          8  actual dollar numbers for the Committee if that

          9  would be helpful, because I know cost is always a

         10  factor, and no one has actually presented what the

         11  actual cost of this would be.

         12                 We support this new legislation, but

         13  we also do ask that the citizens who live above

         14  these establishments and do not have fire sprinklers

         15  required in their apartments that they be protected

         16  too, because fires do not discriminate.  They break

         17  out, they can break out anywhere.  And when it comes

         18  to fire safety, we should consider all residents.

         19  So we ask that you expand this bill, or consider the

         20  necessity of fire sprinklers in all of New York

         21  city's apartment buildings, not just basements.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I thank both

         23  of you, and of course, you are sprinkler people, so

         24  you want a sprinkler bill. But there are two or

         25  three sprinkler bills that we have in the hopper and
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          2  more drafts of bills that we are looking at and will

          3  be looking at in the future.  And we are aware of

          4  the necessity and the problem.  And this does not

          5  take the place of, you know, a larger bill.  This

          6  was just something that the Fire Department and the

          7  Committee thought we should get up and running

          8  immediately.  So I am sure we will be seeing you in

          9  the future and discussing a larger sprinkler bill.

         10                 Council Member Jackson, you have a

         11  question.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well I did

         13  not really have a question, Madam Chair.  I did not

         14  hear Stewart's introduction who he is here

         15  representing.

         16                 MR. O'BRIEN:  My name is Stewart

         17  O'Brien.  I am the Executive Director of the

         18  Plumbing Foundation of the City of New York.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Plumbing

         20  Foundation.

         21                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So basically

         24  at this point you do not have any answers for the

         25  costs of, that is something that you would have to
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          2  look into.

          3                 MS. BARBOUR:  No, but we are having a

          4  meeting next week that I can bring that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, if you

          6  could, just kind of run up some figures on that and

          7  supply it to the Committee, I would appreciate that.

          8                 MS. BARBOUR:  Sure, definitely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Any other

         10  questions?  Thank you very much.

         11                 Frank Choy.

         12                 MR. CHOY:  My name is Frank Choy of

         13  Neighborhood Cleaners Association.  I have no

         14  comment about appeal because I did not read it

         15  through the amendment yet.  However, I would like to

         16  point out that separation walls two- hour separation

         17  from the fire that what kind of materials and what

         18  kind of a structure is required for the store or so

         19  dry cleaners?  Because sometimes legislation is not

         20  clear so there are a lot of unnecessary violations

         21  from the Department.

         22                 So what I want is just to have that

         23  made clear, what kind of inches of structures of

         24  sheet rocks?  And the Fire Department said two-

         25  piece of sheet rock, and how thick, and what kind of
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          2  density?  And what kind of material specification is

          3  required for the dry cleaners, that is what I want?

          4                 And the other one is they want a

          5  flash points, but what kind of flash point, is it

          6  800 or 1200 or 100?  You know from below 100 is

          7  combustible, and over 100 is a flash point.  So we

          8  better make clear 400 flash point or 250, that is

          9  what I want to require?  That is all.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I appreciate

         11  your questions, and you, obviously, know what you

         12  are talking about.  It is the Department of

         13  Buildings, and I think they have left, but they

         14  specify the kinds of materials that have to be used.

         15    And we will certainly check on that and find out

         16  what the specifications will be, that will be

         17  required by the bill.  And we have your information

         18  here and we will let you know and also make it

         19  known.

         20                 Okay, we are not sure at this point

         21  if it needs to be in the Code, if it does it will

         22  be.  But you raised several good points and we will

         23  certainly will look into that for you.

         24                 Council Member Brewer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I just want
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          2  to pick up on that question.  I spent a lot of time

          3  working with dry cleaners and hardware stores over

          4  the years, some of their associations for a variety

          5  of reasons.  And I hope that we can, perhaps, set a

          6  new standard for communicating City information to

          7  small businesses, it is terrible.  I mean, I am a

          8  small homeowner, that is bad enough. And so how we

          9  do that is exactly what I think this gentleman is

         10  complaining about.

         11                 Sometimes you get a summons, you

         12  cannot read it. And that is just not for small

         13  businesses, it is for the rest of us.  So I am

         14  saying, I know that it may not be part of the Code,

         15  but it could be the Community Board.  It could be,

         16  to be sure that on this Advisory Board that was

         17  mentioned, I would love to know who is on it, I

         18  would love to know if there are representatives from

         19  some of the new immigrant merchants on that Advisory

         20  Board?  How do they know about what is going on?  I

         21  have many, many small hardware stores, I am going to

         22  call them and find out how they get information.

         23  Many of them, you know, English is limited, et

         24  cetera.

         25                 So, I just hope we can think about
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          2  this because it is so often the Fire Department

          3  shows up, they do not know there is a new law, they

          4  have no clue.  And it would be good if the merchant

          5  associations, the groups that represent more

          6  citywide that may not be represented in the local

          7  community.  So many times a local merchant

          8  association does not represent some of the new

          9  immigrants, et cetera, et cetera.  So I hope we can

         10  have some discussion of that, this would be a good

         11  test case to see, does this information really get

         12  out clearly when the law is passed?

         13                 So, thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  No, you

         15  raise very good point, and you are right.  I think

         16  we should start a new kind of system for that,

         17  because I probably have a different kind of area

         18  than you, but again, a lot of small businesses, and

         19  you are absolutely right.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Choy.  Oh, wait, do

         21  not leave. Council Member Jackson.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good

         23  morning.  Thank you for coming to testify.  You had

         24  indicated in your testimony flash points of 100

         25  versus 400.  As a layperson I did not really
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          2  understand the difference, and maybe you can or can

          3  someone explain to me what you meant by flash

          4  points?  I would assume you are talking about at the

          5  level of something of the material burning or

          6  flashing up.  Is that correct?  What is the, you

          7  indicated 100?

          8                 MR. CHOY:  One hundred Fahrenheit,

          9  below 100 Fahrenheit, as far as I understand is

         10  considered as combustible. And above 100 Fahrenheit

         11  we consider is flammable.  But even flammable there

         12  is a lot of categories.  You know, so when they

         13  simply flammable and combustible, up to what

         14  Fahrenheit degrees they require to install that kind

         15  of thing?  Because 800 Fahrenheit degrees, the

         16  National Fire Prevention Association does not think

         17  it is a flammable anymore.  So, we have to make it

         18  clear at this point.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now who do

         20  you represent?

         21                 MR. CHOY:  NCA, Neighborhood Cleaners

         22  Association.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And

         24  concerning some of the materials that the

         25  Neighborhood Cleaners Association that they use in
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          2  their businesses, the cleaning fluids and what have

          3  you, is that combustible, flammable?

          4                 MR. CHOY:  Well, first of all, we are

          5  using perchloroethylene.  Perchloroethylene is

          6  toxic, but is not flammable, no flash point.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          8                 MR. CHOY:  So, hydrocarbons we are

          9  using about in New York City about 2 or 3 percent,

         10  dry cleaners.  And before we were using 100 degree

         11  petroleum or 140 degree hydrocarbons.  Now they are

         12  using TF2000, it is 147 Fahrenheit degrees.  So they

         13  are required to install sprinklers, even there above

         14  the ground.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Even above

         16  ground?

         17                 MR. CHOY:  Yes, Sir.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  So

         19  what I am hearing, what you are saying and you are

         20  coming here today is that there needs to be clarity

         21  as to the thickness of the firewall, not only the

         22  thickness, but the composition and the different

         23  levels of degrees of flammable and combustible

         24  materials, all of that needs to be spelled out in

         25  detail.
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          2                 MR. CHOY:  Yes, Sir.  Because when we

          3  only talk about, you know, the fluid that we are

          4  using, we, a lot of a colleagues are serving, than

          5  we are using many per or hydrocarbons. So we do not

          6  store that in the basement, it is our location.  The

          7  problem is chemicals, we are using a lot of

          8  chemicals, some of them is about 140 Fahrenheit

          9  degrees of flammables.

         10                 And when we receive MSDS from the

         11  manufacturers, it shows what is the flash point of

         12  the chemicals.  So we have to make it clear which

         13  chemicals we have to store without any problem in

         14  the basement.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I would

         16  assume that the NCA is submitting, will be

         17  submitting their concerns in writing to, I guess,

         18  this Committee and to the Fire Department and the

         19  Department of Buildings, I would assume that.

         20                 MR. CHOY:  Yes, Sir.  When we

         21  received the, as I told you, the amendment, then I

         22  will go back to my office and will, you know, send

         23  our opinions to you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you

         25  very much.
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          2                 MR. CHOY:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  As regarding

          4  combustibles and flammables, those regulations are

          5  already in the Fire Department Rules.  And we are

          6  not changing that, so that is what we would have to

          7  look to.  And this legislation does not change the

          8  rules that already exist.  So whatever they are, but

          9  we could find out that information for you.

         10                 And also there are Building Codes

         11  that relate to, again, we are not changing, you

         12  know, we are not making adjustments there other than

         13  what is indicated in the current legislation.

         14                 But we will get the information that

         15  you are asking for and certainly get it out to folks

         16  that need it.

         17                 Thank you very much, Mr. Choy.

         18                 Richard Skinner, Morti Hirsch, and

         19  Timothy Bowe. Richard, do you want to start?

         20                 MR. SKINNER:  Yes, thank you.  My

         21  name is Richard Skinner and I am the Regional

         22  Manager for the National Fire Sprinkler Association

         23  based in Paterson, New York.  We represent Fire

         24  Sprinkler Contractors, Suppliers, Manufacturers,

         25  Architects and Fire Service Personnel.  I am also a
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          2  former firefighter and a certified Fire Marshal in

          3  the State of New Jersey and injured my lungs in a

          4  dry cleaners' plant myself, so I can tell you first-

          5  hand a non- sprinkled building in dry cleaners and

          6  in this type of occupancy is very dangerous.

          7                 First, I would like to thank the City

          8  Council for taking actions to protect firefighters

          9  and the general public from fire by installing

         10  sprinklers.

         11                 I am giving testimony today in

         12  support of Intro. 203 to install sprinklers in

         13  mercantile occupancies where flammable and

         14  combustible mixtures will be stored below- grade.

         15                 On Father's Day 2001 the City lost

         16  three experienced firefighters in a fire that had

         17  there been fire sprinklers installed there would

         18  have been no loss of life and the building would

         19  have still been in business today, jobs would have

         20  been saved, and the building would have remained on

         21  the tax rolls.

         22                 Let's take a look, also, at the costs

         23  associated with fighting this fire:

         24                 Con Edison had to shut off power to

         25  the affected buildings in the he neighborhood, so
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          2  that was money expended for their use.

          3                 Structural contractors with heavy

          4  equipment to demolish the building.

          5                 EMS personnel as well as special ops

          6  personnel, and also, other area of the city that

          7  were now non- protected or very little protected

          8  because now the firefighters had to come from other

          9  boroughs to come in and fight this fire.

         10                 The Water Department, the cost

         11  associated with all the water usage.  Naturally, out

         12  of sprinklers, you have a lot less water than you

         13  would out of a two and half inch hose to fight a

         14  fire.

         15                 Workman's Comp for the injured

         16  firefighters.  I was at the scene the next day and

         17  found out that there over 30 firefighters injured.

         18  So many of the them had Workmen's Comp cases with

         19  the City right off the bat for everything from smoke

         20  inhalation to broken fingers, let's say, or

         21  whatever.  So that was costing the city money right

         22  off, you know, right away.

         23                 Also, the death benefits for the

         24  widows and children of the deceased firefighters.

         25  They actually, the families are not only getting, I
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          2  believe, it is either three- quarters or 100 percent

          3  of their pay for the lifetime of the family, but

          4  also now all the medical benefits and things like

          5  that associated with that, in addition to their life

          6  insurance policies.

          7                 So there is a lot of money that is

          8  being expended on every fire that the City of New

          9  York has.

         10                 With all the above resources being

         11  expended on this one incident, the money could have

         12  been spent most likely to sprinkler many buildings

         13  in Queens of this type of occupancy.

         14                 Now I am just going to give a quick

         15  scenario of how sprinklers work.  This is a typical

         16  scenario that you would see in a typical building

         17  within the City of New York or otherwise throughout

         18  the country for that instance.

         19                 The fire would originate in the

         20  basement, one or two sprinklers would activate at

         21  165 degrees Fahrenheit.  The water from the

         22  sprinkler would wet the fire and also pre- wet the

         23  area around the fire containing it and keeping hot

         24  gases down to reduce the chance of flash over where

         25  the heat reaches in excess of 1,400 degree
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          2  Fahrenheit, and the contents in the room turn into a

          3  fireball and rescue personnel are often driven back

          4  from the intense heat or are killed.

          5                 Sprinklers also keep smoke down

          6  aiding firefighters in rescue operations as well as

          7  giving the tenants a clear view to escape.

          8                 Sprinklers also keep firefighters

          9  safe by keeping the structure intact reducing the

         10  chance of structural collapse.

         11                 In addition to the above, Fire

         12  Sprinklers aid in solving cases such as arson and

         13  juvenile fire setting by saving crucial evidence by

         14  pre- wetting it.  This will, in fact, save time in

         15  caseloads for the Fire Marshals.

         16                 Although this bill is a great idea,

         17  and that we at the NFSA applaud, we have to keep in

         18  mind that this is a first step, and we must

         19  understand that partial protection is not effective

         20  in saving total contents and may not prevent

         21  structural collapse from occurring.

         22                 We believe that total protection

         23  should be included in this type of occupancy.  Many

         24  of these buildings have apartments directly above

         25  them and the occupants are at great risk, if only

                                                            62

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  part of the building is protected by a sprinkler

          3  system.  We cannot expect that the fire will always

          4  start in the area where the flammable materials are

          5  stored.

          6                 If the fire starts on the first

          7  floor, the building's floor will collapse causing

          8  the heavy floor trusses and beams to collapse

          9  rendering the sprinkler system inoperable due to

         10  mechanical damage to the system.  Also, if the

         11  people have to escape using the first floor they

         12  will be entering into an inferno and adding fuel to

         13  the fire by opening the door.  This person would

         14  then not have a chance to get out alive and it would

         15  be very hard for firefighters to reach in time.

         16                 Please consider my testimony today to

         17  keep New York City firefighters and the general

         18  public safe from another tragedy like this from

         19  occurring.

         20                 The other thing I would like to also

         21  add is that flammable and combustible liquids and

         22  materials are considered a hazardous material.  And

         23  just to give you a quick idea, I was at the scene of

         24  this fire the next day and saw first- hand a lot of

         25  the materials they were bringing out on pallets.
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          2  And one thing I did notice that there were a lot of

          3  flammable and combustible liquids in that building

          4  on pallets, and there also were aerosols, many

          5  aerosol cans.  And the thing we have to understand

          6  about aerosols is that when they burn they take off

          7  like little rockets.  And what they do is when each

          8  one takes off it goes into an area and starts

          9  another fire over here, and then it starts another

         10  fire over here, and then before you know it the

         11  entire building is going up.

         12                 The other thing that I am opposed to,

         13  is by using the domestic supply to supply the

         14  sprinkler system in this type of an occupancy.  A

         15  domestic supply is only supposed to be utilized,

         16  usually, in what is called the 13D and the 13R

         17  system, which are single- family residential and

         18  multiple- family residential.  And that is one thing

         19  that has not been brought up to day that I would

         20  like to bring up to you folks.

         21                 It is in the NAFP Standards that

         22  residential type systems are not to be used in an

         23  occupancy such as this.  So, what this would do is

         24  you would have sprinklers in a room, you would have

         25  the domestic system hooked.  Let's say you had a
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          2  fire on this table involving combustible and

          3  flammable liquids.  Instead of two sprinklers going

          4  off to keep the quelled and to keep it down, now you

          5  maybe calling for five, six, seven, or maybe all of

          6  the sprinklers in that fire area to go off.  Now

          7  what is going to happen is, instead of all the

          8  volume and the pressure coming out of one sprinkler

          9  or two to control a fire area, now you are taking

         10  all that water from two sprinklers that would

         11  normally control and keep the fire in check, now you

         12  are taking it over a much wider area and you have

         13  less volume coming out of those sprinklers to quell

         14  that fire and to put that fire out.

         15                 So I would recommend strongly that

         16  the second fire line is essential to make this work

         17  and to make it work properly. It is my experience, I

         18  used to inspect many buildings here in the City of

         19  New York, where I would go into basements of

         20  Rickels' Home Centers and such, where I would look

         21  at these types of occupancies, and they really are

         22  very, very dangerous once a fire gets started and

         23  very hard to control unless you have the proper type

         24  of a sprinkler system in there.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So you are
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          2  saying that because it is the domestic water system

          3  the - -

          4                 MR. SKINNER:  The volume limitations

          5  would not be met.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: - -  kind of

          7  spreads out, instead of being, - -

          8                 MR. SKINNER:  Absolutely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  It would be

         10  stronger if it came from a main, in other words.

         11                 MR. SKINNER:  Absolutely.

         12  Essentially, what would happen is that instead of

         13  taking all the water from two sprinklers, let's say,

         14  to keep the fire in check, you are now taking all

         15  that volume that would be necessary in controlling

         16  that fire, and now you are spreading it over, let's

         17  say 10 sprinklers or more.  So you do not have the

         18  same exact volume that you would out of two

         19  sprinklers putting the fire out.

         20                 Also, sprinklers run on what is

         21  called the K factor, and what it comes down to,

         22  essentially, is how much water it is going to take

         23  to get on that fire in order to either put it out or

         24  to slow the fire from growing, from fire growth?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We are
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          2  trying to figure out if you did or did not say

          3  something.  With the domestic line, the current

          4  legislation says that if you are doing 10 or less

          5  you can use the domestic line.  Now are you saying

          6  if you only have two or less that is better

          7  protection, or it is just a greater volume of water

          8  with less sprinkler heads, which?

          9                 MR. SKINNER:  Well the domestic

         10  water, it is basically a 50/50 shot when you look at

         11  it from a fire standpoint. It is not even allowed in

         12  the standard to use domestic on a flammable or

         13  combustible liquid.  So technically it should be

         14  even, it should not even be in the legislation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Well, that

         16  was my next question.  If the types of buildings

         17  that we are talking about, I think you said they

         18  should not be using a domestic line anyway because

         19  of certain codes that you read off.

         20                 MR. SKINNER:  Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So chances

         22  are they would have to use the main anyway.

         23                 MR. SKINNER:  Well they would use

         24  what is called --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Or I mean
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          2  they should not be, they should not even have it.

          3                 MR. SKINNER:  And there is another

          4  way of looking a this also, and that is if you have

          5  a standpipe already in the building, and that is

          6  usually in a high- rise situation.  But let's say

          7  that you have a standpipe in the he building, you

          8  can directly tie into that standpipe because that

          9  has been calculated to the worst case scenario over

         10  fire.  You have the most water there, the most water

         11  delivery is there, and you basically tap into that

         12  line, run the line straight down the center of the,

         13  let's say hallway, and then go into each of the

         14  rooms, which is very cost- effective as well.

         15                 Our cost estimates are between $2.50

         16  per foot up to $4.00 per foot.  With the separate

         17  sprinkler line being installed we are looking in the

         18  range of $10,000.  That might sound like a lot of

         19  money, but it really is not, when you look at square

         20  footage as far as construction trade offs in the

         21  Codes today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  So $10,000

         23  and what would be the square footage estimate for

         24  something that cost $10,000?

         25                 MR. SKINNER:  Well that would be a
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          2  four inch, probably a four inch main directly tapped

          3  in from the street on a T into the building, serving

          4  one riser, and taking care of the entire building.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And the

          6  storage area would be, what would be the size of the

          7  storage area we are talking about?

          8                 MR. SKINNER:  I cannot give you that

          9  answer, to be honest with you, because all the

         10  buildings are very different in the City of New York

         11  the way they are set up.

         12                 The other thing too, is in my

         13  testimony today, what I was trying to explain is if

         14  the fire started on the first floor and we were in

         15  the basement, let's say, stocking shelves.  What

         16  would happen is nine times out of ten, especially in

         17  this building, you had only two means of egress to

         18  get out, but in many buildings you only have one,

         19  which would be to go back up the stairwell onto that

         20  first floor.  Now if that is where the fire has

         21  started and there are no sprinklers there, and there

         22  are sprinklers located where we are now, we would

         23  have to open up that door to physically get out.

         24  Now we actually are making two problems happen here,

         25  we are feeding the fire by oxygen, you know, feeding
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          2  the oxygen back to the fire down into the sprinkled

          3  are.

          4                 The second problem is that we could

          5  be overcome by smoke within two to four minutes of

          6  that fire even starting.  By the time the first

          7  engine rolls in to hit a hydrant, they are five to

          8  seven minutes in, 15 minutes just to set up and get

          9  their crews together to go in and make an interior

         10  attack.

         11                 So if there had been sprinklers in

         12  that building, the flammable liquid would have gone

         13  down the stairwell, it would have hit the pilot

         14  light of that hot water heater, the initial fire

         15  would have started, the sprinklers would have

         16  knocked it down to a point where it would not have

         17  even gotten to a point where it would have gotten

         18  into a very heavy condition.  It would have knocked

         19  it down to a point where an engine company would

         20  have come in with what we call a trash line, which

         21  is knock the fire down a little bit, poke around to

         22  make sure that there was no extension and then go

         23  home.

         24                 The building would have been in use

         25  today, the residents in the apartments would have
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          2  all been able to live there, and there would have

          3  been minimum water damage in the basement area, and

          4  the stock would have been saved for the most part,

          5  except in that small area.

          6                 And I am speaking as a former

          7  firefighter, I am not just speaking as the Sprinkler

          8  Association.  But it really makes sense, it makes

          9  perfect sense.  This is the only city that is very,

         10  very behind in all their codes as far as sprinkler

         11  and otherwise. The City of Boston is in their 10-

         12  year retrofit provision right now where they are

         13  sprinkling all their high- rise buildings.  The City

         14  of New York, we do not have sprinklers in most of

         15  our residential buildings to include the 23rd Street

         16  building where that fire occurred in 1966 that

         17  killed the 12 firefighters or the 10 firefighters.

         18                 So we have to look at a lot more

         19  sprinklerization (sic) in the City where we have not

         20  in the past.

         21                 I would like to entertain any other

         22  questions you folks might have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         24  Do we have any other questions for Mr. Skinner?

         25  Okay.
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          2                 MR. SKINNER:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Mr. Bowe.

          4                 MR. BOWE:  Thank you, Council

          5  members.  My name is Timothy Bowe.  I am a

          6  Professional Engineer licensed in New York State and

          7  I am the current Vice- President of The New York

          8  Fire Sprinklers Contractor's Association.  I am here

          9  to speak in support of the sprinkler concept that

         10  has been introduced here today.

         11                 It is a well documented fact that

         12  complete automatic sprinkler protection throughout a

         13  building is the most effective fire protection

         14  available, and this complete protection concept has

         15  had an enviable record of success for over one

         16  hundred years.

         17                 It should be noted that the bill

         18  submitted here today would require partial

         19  protection be installed in limited storage areas up

         20  to 300 square feet, in areas below- grade where

         21  flammable and combustible materials are stored in

         22  mercantile and similar occupancies.  This proposal

         23  as introduce would allow up to three automatic

         24  sprinkler heads be installed on a water supply

         25  existing in these occupancies that has been sized
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          2  for the domestic water demand only.  The addition of

          3  flow rates that would be required to properly

          4  protect the combustible loading that may be

          5  anticipated under the proposed bill would, in my

          6  professional opinion, not be available from the

          7  existing water supplies that would be typically

          8  found in these properties.  There are also no

          9  provisions for a secondary source of water or alarms

         10  for these systems.

         11                 What is important for the members of

         12  the Committee to understand is that there are

         13  recognized standards that have been used other

         14  protect similar occupancies throughout the City of

         15  New York and the State.  These standards have proven

         16  their value in the countless number of lives that

         17  have been saved and the property that has remained

         18  intact because of these systems.

         19                 What has been proposed in this Intro.

         20  Is a start in the he right direction, but it should

         21  be viewed as inadequate solution to a problem that

         22  has existed for years.

         23                 Trying other economize installation

         24  standards for this successful life safety system

         25  will result in the false sense of security that
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          2  these properties are protected properly and will

          3  ultimately end in failure.  Just as you would not

          4  consider reducing wire size in an electrical system

          5  or the size of structural members for the sake of

          6  economy when designing a building, you must not

          7  reduce the source of water supply and install

          8  partial sprinkler protection in these occupancies

          9  and expect to receive the success record of an

         10  automatic fire sprinkler properly designed,

         11  installed, inspected, and maintained by licensed

         12  professionals.

         13                 In closing, it is my suggestion to

         14  the Committee that complete automatic sprinkler

         15  protection be provided for these existing

         16  properties.  Instead of reducing the requirements

         17  for their installation, provide tax incentives and

         18  low or no interest loans to facilitate the buildings

         19  to be protected.  Insurance premium reduction will

         20  help pay for the system and the properties will

         21  remain on the tax rolls.  The small businesses that

         22  work out of these occupancies will continue to offer

         23  employment to the people in the communities where

         24  they are located.  And last, but not least, the

         25  firefighters that respond to the alarms in these
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          2  fully sprinkled buildings will have a much better

          3  chance of returning to their families after their

          4  tour is complete.

          5                 I have respectfully submitted this.

          6  Thank you very much.  If you have any questions, I

          7  would be happy to answer them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do you have

          9  any questions for Mr. Bowe?  Mr. Hirsch.

         10                 MR. HIRSCH:  My name is Morti Hirsch.

         11    I am a member of several Fire Protection

         12  Associations and the Fire Safety Directors

         13  Association.

         14                 I have been installing and designing

         15  Fire Sprinkler Systems for over forty years and know

         16  when properly a designed Fire Sprinkler System will

         17  extinguish or control the spread of the fire, where

         18  the fire will do little or non- damage both to human

         19  beings and to the property where the combustibles

         20  are kept.

         21                 The intent of Intro. 203 to

         22  sprinklers below- grade storage of flammable and

         23  combustible mixtures in mercantile occupancies is

         24  really just the tip of the iceberg.  The bill must

         25  go above- grade as well where the same hazard
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          2  exists.  For just putting it down below- grade, we

          3  understand below- grade for firemen, it is a more

          4  difficult fire for them to fight.  And above- grade

          5  they can break windows, they have better access

          6  through windows and other areas.

          7                 For an owner or tenant who store or

          8  use flammable or combustible mixtures that the

          9  owner/tenant should file an application and a floor

         10  plan with an intent by year end December 31, 2002.

         11  So this law is so important that we should at least

         12  get, and we had done this with Local Law 5 and Local

         13  Law 16 where the tenant or the owner, whoever is

         14  going to be putting, after the bill is in effect,

         15  should file almost immediately with an intent that

         16  they are going to comply with the law.  Because the

         17  installation could take a bit more time.  Because I

         18  think on the original Intro. 203 you have April

         19  30th, it should comply with the April 30th, 2005.

         20  The code that shall prevail should be New York City

         21  Building Code and NFPA 13, which is the reference

         22  standard to New York City Building Code.  And also,

         23  the new International Building Code, although New

         24  York City has not adopted because of the Home Rule,

         25  but New York State has adopted and is going into
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          2  effect this month, which is more stringent than New

          3  York City's law.

          4                 By the way, just for your

          5  information, and it is still on the books, New York

          6  State Law prevails in fire protection safety that

          7  New York City has to be at least equal to New York

          8  State's requirements on fire safety, even though we

          9  have a Home Rule.

         10                 The water supply shall not be taken

         11  from a connection to the domestic and should be,

         12  what we call, a dedicated water supply, such as that

         13  from the street, fire standpipe system, or other

         14  connections that are a dedicated source.

         15                 Sprinklers should be located in the

         16  area where the flammable or combustible mixtures are

         17  used or stored plus an additional 50 feet in all

         18  directions, so that if a fire does start outside the

         19  stored are, the hot gases enter the stored area,

         20  this would be a safety net.  Note NFPA recommends

         21  that the entire building should be sprinkled.

         22                 I want you to know and understand

         23  that most codes and almost every city in the U.S.A.

         24  Requires Fire Sprinklers in area's similar to the

         25  above subject matter.
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          2                 Hopefully, you will upgraded the

          3  standards you proposed to allow the maximum amount

          4  of safety and security to our firefighters and

          5  citizens of our city.  Our city does not need

          6  another catastrophic tragedy to occur again.

          7                 And being a contractor, I do have

          8  approximate costs just hearing your questions and

          9  being the last one in, of what it cost.  It is not

         10  cheap, just going into the Building Department is an

         11  expensive proposition.  What the Building Department

         12  charges you is not the fee, because you need an

         13  architecture and an engineer to file the drawings to

         14  stamp the drawings.  And then in this city, as you

         15  know, or if you do not know, you need an expediting

         16  service.  So sometimes the expediting service cost

         17  more than the architect and the engineer to draw up

         18  this - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We are

         20  trying to rearrange that, but - -

         21                 MR. HIRSCH:  Well, okay.  I know it

         22  has been going on for many years, and it has kind of

         23  gotten better in some ways.

         24                 Let's say the Building Department

         25  will cost, let's say a $200 filing fee, an

                                                            78

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  architect, I am not an architect per se, but

          3  somewhere in the area of probably between $1,000 and

          4  $2,000, and an expediting fee of about $1,500 to

          5  $2,000 to expedite the applications and the permits.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  My comment

          7  usually is expediters is a misnomer, they do not

          8  really expedite.

          9                 MR. HIRSCH:  They do, because if you

         10  ever tried doing it yourself, I mean, it is a line

         11  process, standing process, waiting process, paper

         12  loss process, it is a tough process.  It is a

         13  process that wears you out, and so the expeditor is

         14  a beneficial way of doing it.  And almost every

         15  contractor, every owner uses an expeditor, and that

         16  is why there are, I do not know, 60, 70 expediting

         17  companies that do expediting.  And some as many as

         18  15 people on staff.  But it exists, believe me it

         19  exists.

         20                 Going into sprinkler costs, sprinkler

         21  costs for that type of a building, and this is a

         22  conservative cost of about $300 a head, but I would

         23  say just entering into a premise, we would have to

         24  charge around $1,500, and that is just because you

         25  are sending men into a premise and there is a
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          2  minimum of at least a day to do an installation.  I

          3  mean, even if it is half a day, - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Are you

          5  saying it would take you have gone through the whole

          6  other process, that the installation would take

          7  about a day?

          8                 MR. HIRSCH:  It could, I am saying,

          9  but, I mean the minimum charge would be for a day.

         10  So about $300 a head, a tie into a connection would

         11  be about $800, and then we would need some sort of

         12  an alarm to say there is a fire here or the

         13  sprinklers went off.  So if it is mechanical it

         14  would be about $1,500, if it was electrical,

         15  including the electrical it would be about $2,500.

         16  And the expensive part is this dedicated water main,

         17  which would be, which we would consider a small one

         18  let's say up to 10 heads, it would be a two- inch,

         19  would be about $5,000, and a medium size for this

         20  particular, what you are speaking about on hardware

         21  stores, paint stores, art supplies, et cetera, this

         22  type of occupancy for a two and a half to four- inch

         23  main would be about $8,000.

         24                 So the water main is an expensive

         25  part, but it is a dedicated water supply.  The first
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          2  that they had in Brooklyn, the Valdez fire, that was

          3  a sprinkler system that failed that was connected up

          4  to the domestic.  And part of it was a closed valve

          5  in a domestic system, and they had no sprinkler

          6  system.  So it gave the false sense of security, it

          7  had sprinklers up.  New York City Housing Authority

          8  failed to make inspections and maintenance,

          9  including the Fire Department, because they too did

         10  not know that this valve was above the ceiling

         11  closed.  And so, for 20 years or 18 years this

         12  building was up thinking that it was protected and

         13  the domestic valve was closed.  And that is the

         14  problem you have with domestic.  I mean it's that,

         15  it is also the water supply, whether or not the

         16  water, as Mr. Skinner said, the water supply being

         17  the off the domestic, are they of ample size.

         18  Because domestic is sized for domestic purposes, and

         19  so when you have at seven o'clock in the evening

         20  when everybody is using the water, or 7:30 a.m. In

         21  the morning when people are using domestic water,

         22  you are using the water, and if you have a fire at

         23  those times, you will not have sufficient water for

         24  the fire.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Being in the
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          2  business, do you know of any tax abatements for

          3  small businesses, if they had to do this kind of

          4  work?

          5                 MR. HIRSCH:  There is none.  There is

          6  none whatsoever.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Mr. Skinner.

          8                 MR. HIRSCH:  The best you get is a

          9  certificate of capital improvement and that would be

         10  for this type of an installation, we would not have

         11  to charge, the owner saves.

         12                 MR. SKINNER:  The only one that I

         13  personally know of is the J51, and I do not know if

         14  that applies to residential or if that is

         15  commercial.

         16                 MR. HIRSCH:  That would be

         17  residential.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, it is

         19  residential, okay.  Council Member Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

         21  My question is twofold, one, I am very familiar with

         22  the expediters and the process, and I agree with the

         23  Chairwoman that it needs to be reformed.

         24                 In your experience has there been any

         25  improvement or have you used any kind of an on- line
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          2  process with the Department of Buildings, is that

          3  something that you have found helpful or you have

          4  not tried?

          5                 MR. HIRSCH:  There has been slight

          6  improvements in the use of the fax.  Self-

          7  inspections came about are somewhat of an

          8  improvement.  That is just a kind of a double- edge

          9  sword.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So you feel

         11  you still have to go down there and use the

         12  expeditor and so on and the small business would

         13  have to do that.

         14                 MR. HIRSCH:  We all still use

         15  expediters of some form, whether we use outside

         16  expediting services or if the company is a very

         17  large they will have there own expeditor.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I know the

         19  process.  And the other question is picking up on

         20  the Chairwoman, does this change in terms of

         21  sprinklers and so on, do you think that would

         22  precipitate a change in one's insurance costs, has

         23  that been something that has been considered?

         24                 MR. HIRSCH:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Is it
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          2  something that is dramatic, or it does not offset

          3  any of these up front costs, do you know?

          4                 MR. HIRSCH:  It comes around a seven-

          5  year payback.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, seven

          7  years, okay. Thank you, Madam Chairwoman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          9  Member Stewart.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  We all agree

         11  that there should be a dedicated line, water line

         12  for a sprinkler system, instead of using the

         13  domestic line.  How long do you feel that it will

         14  take to bring most of these establishments some

         15  under direct code?  In other words to have these

         16  sprinklers installed throughout New York City, most

         17  of these facilities?

         18                 MR. HIRSCH:  I think one of the

         19  things is we do not have the input of how many

         20  stores, how many occupancies.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Well, my

         22  point here is that is this bill to be passed, it

         23  means then we may have to give them some time to

         24  bring it under code.

         25                 MR. HIRSCH:  Yes, definitely.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So how long

          3  do you feel it will take for, just an estimate?

          4                 MR. HIRSCH:  Two to three years.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Two to three

          6  years, and everybody, should be - -

          7                 MR. HIRSCH:  Right on.  There are 700

          8  licensed contractors in the City of New York.  That

          9  is a lot of licensed contractors.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes.  Thank

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         13  Member Fidler.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

         15  Madam Chair.  Not necessarily a question for these

         16  gentlemen, but first a comment. I am not sure,

         17  Councilman, that we all agree that the small

         18  business owners should be required to have a

         19  dedicated line as opposed to the domestic water

         20  supply.  I am not sure, I have come to a conclusion,

         21  but I am not sure we all agree.

         22                 And this question is really more for

         23  you Madam Chair or for the staff, since this bill

         24  was introduced at the request of the Mayor, in

         25  sitting and listening to the testimony, I am
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          2  somewhat concerned about the above- grade storage of

          3  combustible materials, particularly in a mixed use

          4  property.  Where the people who live upstairs, you

          5  know, in one of these properties could be

          6  unprotected from a fire that might erupt on a main

          7  floor where paint is stored or chemicals are stored.

          8    And I suppose the time to ask this question might

          9  have been when Buildings and Fire were here.  But

         10  why are they not asking that this protection be

         11  extended to storage of materials on- grade, at

         12  least, in properties that have residents as well, do

         13  you know what their rationale is?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Well I think

         15  my thought and I have read it somewhere is that

         16  above- grade - -  the fact that they are below-

         17  grade is that it is in a tight area where the fire

         18  is more likely to, you know, ignited.  You know,

         19  just looking at the fire that happened in Queens,

         20  and taking that example, if it is above- grade you

         21  have windows they can break out, you have doors they

         22  can get into.  Also, bear in mind that there is

         23  another sprinkler bill in the hopper.  This is one

         24  that just applies to this particular incident and

         25  these particular stores.  But this is not the end of
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          2  sprinkling for this Committee.

          3                 And this was actually brought to us

          4  by the Fire Department.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I understand

          6  that, and that is why I had some question as to why

          7  it is not more inclusive.  I mean the below- grade

          8  is a no- brainer.  And I, not being an expert, was

          9  wondering if there was a reason that the on- grade,

         10  above- grade issue was not being addressed.  And I

         11  would just suggest and hope that, because I know

         12  sometimes one bill moves, passes.  The other one

         13  does not and languishes.  And if the rest of the

         14  sprinkler issue is not going to be timely addressed

         15  by the Committee, perhaps, we can ask Buildings and

         16  Fire about incorporating some provision that relates

         17  to mix- use buildings.  Because while I understand

         18  the above- grade fire is easier to attack from a

         19  number perspectives and is less dangerous for the

         20  firefighter.  I know that if I was unfortunate

         21  enough to have to live in an apartment upstairs from

         22  a paint store, I would want to know that the ceiling

         23  and my floor was sprinkled, and because, you know,

         24  by very nature of the term, combustible, it can be

         25  somewhat explosive, and it would just seem to me a
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          2  common sense thing to do before we have a tragedy

          3  that calls for, at the request of the Mayor, let's

          4  do this. So I hope that we can be a little more

          5  comprehensive in our final approach when we do

          6  finally vote something out of Committee that will at

          7  least look at the mix- use buildings and the on-

          8  grade issue, if we are not addressing the other

          9  sprinkler bill at the same time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         11  Councilman.  Any more questions?  We thank all of

         12  you.  The hearing is adjourned.

         13                 MR. SKINNER:  We thank you.

         14                 MR. HIRSCH:  Thank you.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)
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